M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 16, 2003
5.00 PM

TAPES

SFC-03 # 56, Side
SFC 03 # 56, Side
SFC 03 # 57, Side
SFC 03 # 57, Side
SFC 03 # 58, Side

>W>r>w>

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Gary WI ken convened the nmeeting at approxinmately 5:00 PM
PRESENT

Senator Gary W/ ken, Co-Chair
Senat or Con Bunde, Vice-Chair
Senat or Robi n Tayl or

Senat or Donny O son

Senat or Lyman Hof f man
Senat or Ben Stevens

Also Attending: CATHERINE BARLIN, Snall Business Omer and
Subst ance Abuse Technician Student; URLINDA KENDALL VORGCEES,
Wangel |l resident, senior student in Al yeska Central School; LI NDA
VORGEES, Wangell resident, parent of Alyeska Central School
Student; N CHOLAS GROSSKRUTH, Student, University of Al aska
Sout heast; JENNIFER LOESCH, Student, University of Al aska,
Sout heast; CHRI STIN HOMRD, Transfer Student, University of Al aska
Sout heast; RYAN GREEN, Third-Year Qut-of-State Student, University
of Al aska Sout heast; ERIC MORRI SON, Student, University of Al aska
Sout heast; JOYCE KITKA, Representative, Alaska Association for
Community Education; MARIE DARLIN, Capital Gty Task Force
Coordi nator, AARP Al aska; ROSALEE WALKER, Representative, d der
Persons Action G oup and AARP Al aska-Juneau Chapter; SAM TRI VETTE,
President, Retired Public Enpl oyees of Al aska; NANCY ANDI SON; NMARC
WHEELER, Menber, Gty & Borough of Juneau Assenbly; JIM CARRCLL,
37-Year Juneau Resident, Menber, AARP Alaska, and President,
Retired Teachers Association-Juneau Chapter; DAN EL PETERSON,
Menber, City & Borough of Juneau Board of Education, and Student,
University of Alaska Southeast; PAUL DOUG.AS;, EARL CLARKE,
Enpl oyee, Independent Living Center; KEVIN RITCH E, Executive

SFC- 03 (1) 04/ 16/ 03



Director, Al aska Minicipal League; KACI HAM LTON, President Elect,

Uni versity of Al aska Sout heast; NELI NELSQON, Environnental Science
Maj or, University of Al aska Sout heast; JONATHAN SM TH, H gh Schoo

Bi ol ogy Teacher, Juneau School District; ANDREA DOLL, Teacher; BOB
BRI GGS, Staff Attorney, Disability Law Center; ALINA DULUSKI; LISA
HOFERKAMP, Chem stry Professor, University of Alaska Southeast;

PEGGY COMN, CATHY CONNOR, Ceol ogy Professor, University of Al aska
Sout heast; TOBI N COATE, Student, University of Al aska Sout heast;

JEANNE FOY, Teacher, Alyeska Central School; JIM DOUGAS,

Prof essor, University of Al aska Fairbanks and Sout heast Al aska and
Kodi ak 4-H Agent, and the Cooperative Extension Service Program
Agent; CECILEA M LLER, Teacher, Alyeska Central School; M CHELLE
AKERS, Student and Enployee, University of Alaska Southeast,
Enpl oyee, National Cceanic and Atnosphere Adm nistration (NOAA),
and Enpl oyee, Departnent of Environnental Conservation Laboratory;
CHARLES LI NDLEY, Student, University of Al aska Sout heast; JEREM AH
CRAI G Student, University of Al aska Sout heast

Attendi ng via Tel econference: *tel econference participants fromthe
communities of Barrow, Kotzebue, Nome, Tok, Ketchikan, Delta
Junction, Kodiak, Bethel, G ennallen, Petersburg, Sitka, Wangell
and offnet sites who testified on the FY 04 QOperating Budget are
listed in the body of the mnutes in the order in which they
testified. *

SUMVARY | NFORVATI ON

HB 75- APPROP: OPERATI NG BUDGET/ LOANS/ FUNDS
HB 76- APPROP: MENTAL HEALTH BUDGET

The Commttee heard public testinmony fromthe communities of None,
Kot zebue, Barrow, Tok, Ketchi kan, Delta Junction, Kodiak, Bethel,
A ennal | en, Petersburg, Sitka, and Juneau. The bills were held in
Conmitt ee.

#hb75
#hb76

CS FOR SS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 75(FIN) am(brf sup maj fld)

"An Act meking appropriations for the operating and | oan
program expenses of state governnent, for certain prograns,
and to capitalize funds; and providing for an effective date."

CS FOR SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 76(FI N)

"An Act nmaking appropriations for the operating and capital
expenses of the state's integrated conprehensive nental health
program and providing for an effective date."

SFC- 03 (2) 04/ 16/ 03



This was the sixth hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Conmittee.

Co-Chair WIlken notified testifiers that any witten testinony
received by the Conmttee would becone part of the public record on
this legislation. He stated that verbal testinony would be [imted
to two m nutes.

M CHAEL JEFFERY testified via tel econference from Barrow and urged
the Commttee to continue funding the "high quality" year-round
education that is provided through the Al yeska Central School (ACS)
correspondence program He spoke of the positive educational
experience that his famly nmenbers have received fromthe program
and he attested that closing the school would not save the State
any noney, as the base student foundation fornula funding would
foll ow the students to another school.

PEGGY WOOD, InterimDi rector, University of A aska Northwest Canpus
in Nonme, testified via teleconference from Nonme to urge for ful
funding support of the University. She noted that, of her
sevent een-year association with the University system adequate
funding has only been provided during the past five years. She
stated that this funding has, after a decade of reductions, allowed
the University to provide "critical job skills" for such things as
t he education, health, and vocational prograns required to support
t he econom c devel opnent needs of the State. She stated that were
the funding | evel being requested disallowed, the result would be a
reduction in programfunding, as staff salary increases have been
approved by the House Finance Conmttee.

LAVERNE SM TH, Enpl oyee, University of Al aska Northwest Canpus and
Menber, Common Council, Gty of None, testified via tel econference
from Nonme and urged for continued support of the Northwest Canpus
fundi ng which provides the area's students with inmportant skills.

JERRY TRAINOR testified via tel econference from None and asserted
that funding for education should be a State priority. He stated
that such things as the educational partnerships that the Northwest
Canmpus has nmde available in the area is providing workforce
training that has benefited the area and increased the nunber of
|l ocally hired enployees. He stated that such things as carpentry
and conputer skills have al so been provided.

JEFF SELVEY, Enpl oyee, Bering Straits School District, testified
via teleconference from Nonme in support of funding education to
allow the continuation of such things as the joint effort in
support of the area's devel opnental |earning center called the
Nort hwest ern Al aska Career Technical Center (NACTC). He noted that

SFC- 03 (3) 04/ 16/ 03



with the cooperative efforts by such entities as the Northwest
Canmpus, NACTC has been able to provide quality educational training
to assist, for instance, the area's health care field.

ROGER WRI GHT, Executive Director, [ name  of or gani zati on
i ndi scernible], from an offnet site in Kotzebue and urged that
funding for the Center be reinstated.

NEAL CEORGE, President, Association of Honmes for Children,
testified via teleconference from Barrow and urged for the
conti nued support of the Departnment of Health and Soci al Services'
Famly Preservation Fund grant as it provides early intervention in
a cost effective manner and serves to "strengthen famlies and
comunities" from Ketchikan to Barrow. In addition, he urged for
funding for the Tobacco Cessation and Education program as the
programis effective.

BARBARA COLE, Health Education Program Manager, Mani i | aq
Associ ation, testified via tel econference from Kot zebue and spoke
in opposition to any reduction in the twenty percent allocation of
the Master Tobacco Settlenment the State received fromthe tobacco
i ndustry, to support tobacco cessation and education programs in
the State. She stated that this program "is an act of preventive
medicine” and is effective and supported by the citizens of the
St ate.

CATHERINE BARLIN, Small Business Ower and Substance Abuse
Techni cian Student, testified in Juneau, in opposition to proposed
reductions in juvenile treatnent prograns. She shared her
experiences volunteering at the Johnson Youth Center for youth age
twelve to seventeen, and she shared that nost of the youth enter
the program initially, as the result of mnor consunption of
al cohol. This vice, she continued, could evolve to nore serious
crimes. She stated that these youth require program consistency and
followup as well as in-State treatnment prograns near their
famlies. She conmunicated that the youth ask such questions as:
"why aren't nore youth treatnent prograns available and why is only
one Al coholics Anonynmous (AA) neeting a week offered.” She stated
that these youth get caught in the enotional "revolving door of
anger, frustration, fear, distrust, fear, and despair." She stated
that while she is unsure how to answer the questions, she does know
that treatnment prograns do help in offsetting further crimnal
activity and in helping famlies cope. She attested that, "we need
nore of what we don’t have enough of." In addition, she noted that
efforts nust be nade to ensure that whatever funding is avail able
be used in an effective manner.

Senat or Tayl or asked the testifier to supply himwith a sunmary of
the youth treatnment progranms that are available on a statew de

SFC- 03 (4) 04/ 16/ 03



basi s.
AT EASE: 5:21 PM/ 5:40 PM

TIM SM TH, President, None Fi sherman's Association, testified via
tel econference from Nonme and stated that the organization has a
charitable gamng permt and operates a pull-tab business. He
suggested that the State could generate revenue by authorizing
video gam ng, which, he noted, is being proposed in separate
| egislation. He informed the Conmittee that the State of O egon
approved video gamng, and as a result, has tripled its revenues
above that previously earned by pull-tabs and bi ngo. He noted that
opposition to video gamng centers around the need "to protect
peopl e from excessive ganm ng;" however, he attested that this
should not be a real consideration as nultiple uncontrollable
opportunities already exist via such things as the Internet. He
declared that because other outlets exist, the State, by not
authorizing video gamng, is allowng this revenue stream to go
outside the State. He al so spoke in opposition to proposed changes
to the tax-structure for pull-tabs as it would serve to renove
needed revenue fromcharities.

REBECCA KLEI NSCHM DT, Representative, Ketchi kan General Hospita

Tobacco Cessation Program testified via teleconference from
Ket chi kan and urged the Commttee to fund, at the recognized twenty
percent of the Tobacco Settlenment Fund | evel, the Tobacco Cessation
and Education Program as, she attested, its goal of assisting
people to refrain from snoking provides health benefits to the
snoker and their children. She stated that one client recently
voi ced being angry that the continued funding of this popul ar and
effective program m ght be in jeopardy. She also stated that this
sane client is now experiencing financial benefit from not spending
in excess of $4,000 a year on tobacco products to support her
t obacco addi ction.

LAURI E THOVAS, Representative, Alaska Infant Learning Program
Association and the Ketchikan Comunity Connections Program
testified via teleconference from Ketchikan to address the
consequences that would result were the Commttee's recommendati on
to reduce funding for the Infant Learning Program by $250,000
approved. She stated that this reduction would result in a five
percent decrease in State grant funding and would also result in
reduci ng essential services to five percent of the children who
experience or are at risk of devel opnental delays. Furthernore, she
stated, national studies indicate that for every dollar spent on
early detection and intervention, four dollars are saved in | ong-
term care and support services. She stated that contrary to the
reduction's intent |anguage, famlies are already billed for these

SFC- 03 (5) 04/ 16/ 03



services, and, she attested, nmany struggle to pay. She stated that
were famlies required to pay nore, or were nore famlies asked to
pay, choices that mght result would include whether to buy
groceries, seek medical attention, or to obtain Infant Learning
services. This, she continued, would be a hardship to sone
famlies, and sone woul d choose not to seek assistance. She stated
that funding is already inadequate, and she avowed that further
budget reductions would cost the State nore in the |ong run.

MARY MARTIN, Instructor and Social Wrk Student, Interior-Al eutians

Canpus, Uni versity of Al aska Fai r banks, testified Vi a
tel econference from Tok and urged support of University funding.
She stated that, "the Interior-Aleutians Canpus is a vital

conponent to the continued increase in the diversity of rura
Al aska economes." She furthered that the presence of staff in
these rural areas nmkes the University system "nore approachabl e
and less intimdating as conpared to working with a facel ess, and
at tinmes, voiceless educational style of Internet, mail-in, and
tel econferenced classes.” In addition, she attested that students’
concerns are afforded "pronmpt, courteous, and know edgeable
assi stance" by the |ocal staff. She stated that oftentines, rural
prograns are the ones that experience "budgetary cutbacks," and she
urged that the University not becone "yet another effective and
needed organi zation that vanishes fromrural Al askan comunities."

AT EASE 5:51 PM/ 6:20 PM

VICKIE MIZIK-O BRIEN testified via tel econference fromKetchi kan in
support of the Infant Learning Program (I1LP) and the benefits that
it has provided to her child "who is devel opnental |y del ayed."” She
stated that were a budget reduction to occur to the programin FY
04, on top of a budget cut that occurred in FY 03, it would be very
difficult for the Ketchikan Comrunity Connections program to
continue to maintain its ILP | evel of service. She stated that any
reductions in service would be detrinental to her son and other
peopl e who depend on those services. She voiced that, "preventive
medicine is worth a pound of cure,” and she attested that early
i ntervention would save the State a trenmendous anmpunt of noney in
the long run and would also allow famlies to remain in the State
rat her than being required to seek support services el sewhere.

AT EASE 6:22 PM/ 6:30 PM

Bl NG SANTAMOUR, Chair, Kuskokwi m Canpus Advi sory Board, University
of Alaska, testified via teleconference fromBethel to voice that
the Board fully supports the University's budget request, because,
she declared, "any cuts to the University would greatly affect
rural campuses.” She stated that while a |arge campus m ght be

SFC- 03 (6) 04/ 16/ 03



better able to absorb budget reductions, "the ripple affect” of a
fundi ng reduction for rural areas would be nore severe in regards
to its inpact on staffing and services. She urged that the budget
be funded 1in order to <continue the already "bare-bone"
adm nistrative units that exist.

BOB MEDI NGER, Director, Kuskokwi m Canpus, University of Al aska,
testified via tel econference fromBethel and urged for full funding
of the University's budget request. He infornmed the Conmttee that
Campus has experienced trenendous program advancenents that have,
in turn, resulted in a 110 percent enrollnment increase, year to
date. He stated that local hire has also increased as a result of
t hese educational opportunities. In conclusion, he attested that
University staff salary increases are necessary, statew de.

ELAINE MANNI NG testified froman offnet site in Nelchina in support
of the I ndependent Living Program which has allowed her, a woman
suffering from Muscul ar Sclerosis to reside in her own hone and be
cared for by her famly. She stated that she is thankful for being
provi ded the opportunity to live at hone, and she stated that her
being able to do so al so saves the State the much hi gher expense of
nur si ng hone care.

PAM KRQN, Student, Interior-Al eutians Canpus, University of Al aska
Fai rbanks, testified via teleconference from Tok in support of
continued funding of the University and the distance |earning
prograns it provides to people who live in rural areas of the
St at e.

PH L GUTLEBEN, Busi ness Manager, Lower Kuskokwi m School District in
Bethel, testified via tel econference from Tok and voi ced, on behal f
of the school district admnistration, that: flat funding of the
base student foundation fornmula and a reduction of the |earning
opportunity grants funding would not sustain current educational

prograns; the base student foundation formula should be increased
to $4,500 and inflation-proofed; forward funding of education nust
be provided to allow districts to provide "for |ong-range planning
in order to maximze the use of available resources;" reduced
Department of Health and Social Services funding would harm
famlies "and would place additional burdens on the educationa

system " and, increased funding of the Departnment of Health and
Soci al Services and educati on prograns woul d be required to support
both famlies and the educational system He suggested that a
sliding scale income tax, a restructuring of the Permanent Fund
di stribution, and/or the establishnent of an education endowrent
fund be considered as funding mechanisns. In addition, as a private
citizen, engineer, educator and a regi stered Republican, he voiced
support for the government "stream ining"” that Governor Mirkowski

SFC- 03 (7) 04/ 16/ 03



is furthering; however, as a foster parent, he stressed that
educati on should be considered as the top priority. He stated that
children are not only the future of the country, but also of the
St at e.

BI NG SANTAMOUR, testified via teleconference from Bethel as a

citizen and resident of Bethel, against reduced funding for
post secondary funding as it would negatively affect the quality and
quantity of postsecondary education and would, in addition,

negatively affect the opportunities of citizens and would result in
an increase in unenpl oynent.

SFC 03 # 56, Side B 06:40 PM

DON ROBERTS JR testified via tel econference from Kodi ak and voi ced
di spleasure with the actions of the State's elected Republican
| egi sl ators.

Senat or Bunde suggested that the testifier consider running for an
el ected office as, by doing so, he could thereby offer his services
and i deas.

PATT G BBS testified via teleconference from Kodi ak agai nst the
proposed decrease in funding for student transportation, as he
contended, the providing of transportation is required under the
State's Constitution. In addition, she voiced support for the
conti nued appropriate funding | evel of Learning Qpportunity G ants.

BETTY WALTERS, Superintendent, Kodiak |Island Borough School
District testified via tel econference fromKodiak to urge that the
base student foundation funding formula, the Learning Opportunity
grants, and pupil transportation be fully funded at the appropriate
| evel s.

MARY FORBES testified via tel econference from Kodi ak i n support of
education funding. She stated that the reason she has remained
living in Kodiak is because of the quality of life, to which, she
attested, educational opportunities are a contributing factor. She
stated that she would forego her Permanent Fund D vidend to support
education. Furthernore, she voiced support for a State incone tax
and/ or an education tax.

MERI HOLDEN testified via teleconference fromKodiak to state that
she has lived in Kodiak for 29-years because of the quality of
education and the quality of life that the area offers. She urged
for full education funding, inflation proofing, an increase in the

SFC- 03 (8) 04/ 16/ 03



base student foundation fornmul a, and full funding for
transportation, opportunity grants, and comunity schools. She
suggested that a statewi de tax be inplenented to support education
as, were it short-funded, the quality of education would suffer and
the State woul d be negatively affected. She voi ced support of an
i ncome tax or a school tax, "or whatever it takes" to properly fund
education. In addition, she stated that further funding reductions
woul d force school progranms to be elimnated, would result in
further staff reductions, and woul d force such things as the school
pool to be close.

CAI LEY STEVENS, Seventh G ade Kodiak Mddle School Student,
testified via tel econference from Kodi ak and urged for continuing
support of education funding as, she attested, students nust be
chal l enged and education mnust be enhanced by the offering of
expanded progranms such as nusic, physical education, sw ming

advanced cl asses, and a quality teaching staff.

VALERIE VWH TE, Educator, Kodiak Mddle School, testified via
tel econference from Kodiak to voice concern that, in the past
thirteen years, the base student foundation funding fornula has
i ncreased only $190.63 for a 3.56 percent overall funding increase.
However, she stated that during that sanme anmount of time, inflation
has been 36.6 percent. In addition, she noted that during this sane
time period, the State's contribution to the total annual school
budget has decreased from 79.55 percent to 60.62 percent. She
stressed that flat funding of education and the |ack of proper
inflation proofing nmeasures are not allow ng schools to keep up
with the rising expenses of property insurance, health insurance,
and fuel costs, and she stressed, it is harmng schools' ability to
provi de new t ext books and to neet new federal and State education
requi rements such as the No Child Left Behind nandate. In addition,
she stated that funding to upgrade and replace such things as
school equipnent, furniture, and carpets is not available. She
decl ared that students are not being provided the education they

need, and she concluded that, in order to support education, she
would "gladly" pay a State incone tax as proposed in SB 137.
However, she stressed that were a tax inposed, it should be
equi table across all incone |evels.

BETTY O DELL, Menber, Kodiak School Board, testified via
tel econference from Kodi ak, and urged for full funding for schools
and pupil transportation. She stated that declining student
enrol Il ment, conbined with increased expenses resulting from such
things as rising fuel costs and property insurance, as well as the
requirenents set forth by the No Child Left Behind Act are
resulting in increased class sizes of between 35 to 40 students.
Larger class sizes, she stressed are harder for teachers to teach

SFC- 03 (9) 04/ 16/ 03



and make a nore difficult |earning environment. She urged that the
Legi sl ature "explore other avenues" such as a State incone tax or
State lottery to fund educati on.

PAT CARLSON, City Mnager, Kodiak I|sland Borough, testified via
tel econference from Kodiak to stress that people in Kodiak are
"extrenely concerned about preserving the level of quality in
education"” for their students. He stated that the | ocal governnent
is contributing the maxi mum al |l owabl e fi nanci al support toward this
goal, and now, he attested, the conmunity requires the assistance
of the Legislature to further these endeavors. He stressed that the
size of a community is a nmajor factor when determning its cost per
capita debt commtnment in its participation in the State's bond
proposal to upgrade or build new facilities, and, he stressed that
a small community's commitnent toward this endeavor could
negatively inpact its budget. He urged that, when addressing the
bond issue, the State would al so address nuni ci pal revenue sharing
as it has a major affect on small communities' budgets as "they
don't have the noney, the resources, or the tax base to absorb"
| arge nunicipal revenue sharing reductions. He suggested that a
"floor be established" and that a "hold harnml ess bottont be
identified. He concluded that the State should develop a fisca

pl an, and he attested "that folks are willing” to contribute to the
State's budget.

WAYNE STEVENS, Executive Director, Kodiak Chanber of Commerce,
testified via teleconference from Kodiak and spoke to the
i nportance  of providing children wth good educational
opportunities by exanpling a Junior Achi evenent (JA) Program he had
utilized while teaching his fourth grade JA program He expl ai ned
that in the program econony is defined as a system of using and
taking care of natural resources, human resources, and capital
resources. He submtted that, we as a State nust take care of our
human resources by providing them with a quality education. He
declared that it would be cheaper to provide a quality education
per capita than it would be were these youth negatively affected
and perhaps incarcerated because of their inability to find gai nful
enpl oynment and other activities after high school. He voiced
support for full funding of the base student foundation fornula for
| ocal schools and for full funding for the University. He stated
that the Kodi ak Chanber of Commerce would be submtting a letter in
support of full funding for education.

MKE MLLIGAN testified via tel econference from Kodi ak and stated
that he is pleased with the adm nistration of the State's public
school system He noted that during his tenure on the Kodiak Island
Bor ough Assenbly, he voted to raise taxes, "and the sky didn't fal

in." He factiously exanpled that Al askans have gotten and conti nue

SFC- 03 (10) 04/ 16/ 03



to get "a free ride" at the state and national level. He stated
that instituting an inconme tax "is not a bad thing," and he shared
that the state of M ssissippi has a higher funded school system and
a higher gas tax than A aska. He rem nded the comm ttee that Al aska
used to have a sales tax. He stated that Al aska nust beconme a
progressive State, and he urged the Conmttee to "please send the
State in a different direction.”

JERRY KAI NULAI NEN, [indiscernible] Specialist, Southeast Al aska
| ndependent Living, and Menber, Governor's Commttee on Enpl oynent
and Rehabilitation of Persons with Disabilities, testified via
tel econference from Sitka, and spoke to the value of I|Independent
Living Centers. He shared the Center's national m ssion statenent
as follows: "Assistance to persons wth disabilities s
acconpl i shed by providing information advocacy, independent |iving
skills training, peer support, and services that allow persons wth
disabilities to live outside of an institution, to nove toward

i ndependence and enploynent."” He stated that it is a very cost
ef fective program when considering that, for an approxi mate annual
cost of $43,000, a person wth disabilities could live

i ndependently as opposed to living in a nursing hone at an
approxi mat e annual cost of $130,000 per person. He stated that the
Center has been successful in transitioning several persons out of
nursing hone care to "living independently in their own hones in
their own comunities.” He stated that were the proposed budget
reductions to this program adopted, two centers would be forced to
close and seventeen persons wth disabilities would not be
transitioned froma nursing hone to their own hone. He stated that
this would incur a $1.5 mllion expense to the State. Furthernore,
he attested that 49 individuals would be forced to nove into
nursing hones at a cost of approximately $4.4 mllion. He stated
that this is evidence that Independent Living Centers are cost
effective prograns, and he wurged that the proposed funding
reductions be reinstated to the program

JOHN HOLST testified via tel econference fromSitka regarding "the
current under-fundi ng of the bonded i ndebtedness issue, which is of
particular interest to Sitka as it recently adopted a referendumto
build a new auditorium based on the fact that there was going to
be 60 percent funding from the State." He stated that the
auditoriumis a serious matter, as it has been needed for forty
years, and he continued that were the bond program changed, the
project would be placed in jeopardy. He stated that the
Legi sl ature's change of position, within a six-nonth tinmeframe "is
bothersonme in that a promse nmade is a pronm se kept." He voiced
being "m | dly appalled" at this change of events.

JOHN FERRI CK, Vol unteer Digital Media Teacher, Sitka Hi gh School,

SFC- 03 (11) 04/ 16/ 03



testified via teleconference from Sitka regarding the bond
i ndebt edness i ssue. He stated that voters "constantly renew' their
commtnment to education by approving these prograns, strictly based
on the Legislature's prom se to support the program He stated that
the prospect of the Legislature reducing the funding of the bond
i ndebt edness program is unsettling, and he suggested that, were
pl ans afoot to reduce the programis funding, it should "only apply
going forward" to any bond project that woul d be approved after the
Legi sl ature nakes this decision.

SHARYN FERRICK testified via tel econference from Sitka and voi ced
distress regarding the possibility that the Legislature m ght
change its mnd in regards to funding, at the 60-percent level, a
| ocal auditoriumproject that people in the community approved due
to their understanding that this would be the Ievel of the State's
obl i gati on under the bond indebtedness program She stated that
were the State's obligation to | essen, then it would appear that
once a politician is elected, "then the public falls behind." She
urged the Legislature "to live up to its word" regardi ng what was
initially voted on during the statew de el ection and represent the
wi shes of the people. She stated that the recently approved
auditoriumis critical to the Sitka conmunity.

JEAN FRANK testified via teleconference from Sitka and spoke in
concern regarding the proposal to reduce funding for the Tobacco
Cessation and Prevention program She stated that an investnment in
t obacco control saves lives and dollars. She |ikened the tobacco
control programto building a fence along a raging river to prevent
people fromfalling in and drowni ng.

TOM CONLEY, Pr esi dent, Sitka School Board, testified via
tel econference from Sitka and stated that the community is
"di scouraged” about the proposal to further reduce education
funding, as he stated, the Board was already approaching their
budget under the auspice of operating wthin the previous year's
reduced funding levels. He stated that the proposed reduction to
education and pupil transportation would serve to "seriously
cripple schools" and woul d thereby serve to elimnate nore teaching
jobs and induce other budget "paring." He stated that, "it is
unf at honabl e" how we, as a State, do not support our children, as
Al aska has one of the lowest |evels of state taxes in the nation
and has "lots of noney in the bank." He concluded that, were a
State tax required to support education, then "so be it."

Senat or Tayl or voiced support for the testifier's corments. He al so
noted, in response to the prior testinony regarding the Tobacco
Control Program that he has fought hard to retain the twenty
percent of the Master Tobacco Settlenment that was all ocated toward

SFC- 03 (12) 04/ 16/ 03



Tobacco Cessation and Prevention prograns.

SUSAN SCl ABBARRASI testified via teleconference from Wangell and
rem nded the Legislature and the Governor that recent election
canpai gns focused on the need to provide good public education in
the State. Therefore, she urged the Conmttee to provide "adequate
and equitable funding for education.” She stressed that this should
i nclude providing adequate funding for the |earning opportunity
grants, pupil transportation, debt reinbursenent, and comunity
school s funding. She stated that the City of Wangell financially
supports its education system to the fullest allowable |evel
t hrough such neans as inposing the highest tax rate in the State.
However, she attested, education mandates such as the No Child Left
Behind, inflation, and other expenses continue to force program and
teacher reductions. She stated that further reductions in the
City's revenue budget would negatively affect the |ocal nonetary
support of schools, as currently one-third of the school district's
budget is attributed to City contributions.

ROBERT PRUNELLA, Forner Schoolteacher and Admi nistrator, Current

City Manager, Cty of Wangell, testified via tel econference from
Wangell and informed the Commttee that the GCty, |ike other
communities in the State, "is on the verge of inploding" as it has

lost a third of its population and its logging and fishing
resources are declining. He noted that while the State is
attenpting to balance its budget by inplenenting such things as
nore taxes, user fees and program reductions, these noves woul d
further danmage the City. He stated that a decision nmust be nade to
seek other revenue sources, specifically to further discussions
regardi ng maki ng Al aska a resource-based State in order to create
jobs and to pronpte industry.

URLI NDA KENDALL VORGEES, Wangell Resident and Student, Al yeska
Central School (ACS) Correspondence Program testified in Juneau,
and stated that were the ACS programelimnated, her ability, as a
senior, to graduate by the end of the school year, would be placed
in jeopardy. She stated that not only is this program the only
accredited correspondence programin the State, it is the only one
t hat accommodat es students with special needs. She stated that of
nost inportance to her is the quality of the programis 25 teachers.
Wil e she agreed to the elimnation of its sumrer school program
she besieged the Commttee "to keep ACS open for one nore year" in
order to allow the school to regroup as perhaps a charter school,
and to allow students to transition fromthe program

Co-Chair WIlken replied that discussions to this effect are
occurring.

SFC- 03 (13) 04/ 16/ 03



SFC 03 # 57, Side A 07:28 PM

LI NDA VORGEES, Wangell Resident and Parent of Alyeska Central
School Student, testified via tel econference in Juneau, and advi sed
that other than the expense associated with operating the ACS
sumer school, closure of ACS would not save the State noney. She
voi ced that ACS "is a wonderful and unduplicated” program and is
the only accredited correspondence program in the State.
Furthernore, she shared that one of the accreditation requirenents
is that each teacher, at the high school |evel, nust possess 21
credit hours in the subject they teach. She stated that ACS offers
"a safety net" to students at risk of dropping out of school. She
requested that "to not breach" the agreenent with the parents of
youth enrolled in ACS, the school nust be kept open until August
2003, and she urged that the school be allowed to operate, for at
| east one nore year, to allow parents and students to regroup. She
al so suggested that |egislation be authorized to allow ACS to be
recogni zed as a new i ndependent school district.

Senat or Tayl or asked the testifier to describe where she resides.

Ms. Vorgees stated that rather than being on a road system her
honme is approximately a three-mle wal k down a shoreline and that,
due to its renote | ocation, access to a school is prohibited in the
wintertime. She avowed that the ACS programwas created, in 1949,
to provide for the educational needs of famlies such as hers, and
she assured the Commttee that the need for this type of program
conti nues.

Senator Bunde opined that while the State currently has
approxi mately 53 school districts, "educational judgnment" would
allow that half of that nunber would be sufficient. Furthernore, he
noted that additional adm nistrative expenses would negatively
af fect cl assroom fundi ng.

Ms. Vorgees understood the concern, and noted that a district
reducti on would be hel pful to the State. However, she stated that
the creation of a new district to acconmodate ACS woul d continue to
be on "the Christmas Wsh List."

LAURI E BERGREN, Parent and Menber, Petersburg School Board,
testified via tel econference fromPetersburg to attest to the harm
that woul d be incurred were school district funding to be further
reduced. She shared that staff and course offerings have already
been negatively affected, and that in addition to being required to
provi de for nmandated prograns, |ower funding, conbined with the

SFC- 03 (14) 04/ 16/ 03



i ncreasing costs of such things as retirenment benefits and fue
woul d continue to erode the quality of education being provided.

SHERI W KAN, President, Petersburg School Board, testified via
tel econference from Petersburg to share with the Commttee the
staff and program reductions that the Petersburg school system has
al ready experienced due to budget shortfalls. In addition, she
voiced how difficult it is to plan a budget when the |evel of
funding fromthe State and the Cty are unknowns. She asked that
the Legislature provide sone "stability" to the education systemin
the State.

MARI LYN MENI SH- MEUCCI testified via tel econference from Petersburg
and voiced dismay that the Legislature, after the recent el ection
canpai gns that focused on supporting education, is proposing to
reduce education funding. She stated that pertinent prograns are
being elimnated in the high school due to budget shortfalls, and
she urged the Legislature to adequately fund education in order to
prevent education from "goi ng backwards."

JOHN BRI NGHURST, Parent, Local Businessman, Forner School Board
Menber, testified via teleconference fromPetersburg to attest to
the "overall devastating” harmthat would result froma consistent,
gradual reduction in school funding. He shared that from a busi ness
point-of-view, the ability to attract new people to a conmunity is
enhanced by such things as a good hospital or school system and
now, he stated insufficient funding is negatively inpacting these
comunity attributes. He urged that other options, including
elimnation of the Permanent Fund Dividend program should be
scrutini zed before further school short funding occurs.

JI M SCHWATZ, Teacher, testified via tel econference from Petersburg
and voiced concern regarding the reduction in educational
opportunities that are being provided to youth today as conpared to
t he education he had received as a student in Petersburg. He voiced
di sbelief that elected officials are "blind* to the needs of
students. He stated that further education funding reductions would
begin a downward spiral that the State would regret, as it would
serve to undermne people's desire to remain in the State. He urged
that "this trend" be reversed.

Senat or Tayl or voiced that, of the Commttee nenbers, "for the |ast
four years, nobody has worked harder to get education funding
i ncreases passed through this Legislature" than Co-Chair WI ken and
hinmself. He stated that he is proud of the fact that education
received "a greater increase in funding than inflation was running
at the tinme," and in the fact "that it was the first tine that any
significant increase in funding was approved in a long tine."

SFC- 03 (15) 04/ 16/ 03



Conti nui ng, he applauded local efforts to further control rising
education costs by reducing |ocal expenses between seven and 30
percent, and he understood that further reductions would be
incurred, even were State funding nmaintained at the FY 03 level. He
voi ced concern; however, that continued reductions in education
fundi ng woul d "destroy the whol e program"”

DONNA MARSH, Parent, and Menber, Petersburg School Board, testified
via teleconference from Petersburg to voice concern about the
erosion of education funding as expenses such as property
i nsurance, are surpassing funding allocations. She stated that
continuing to reduce education prograns is negatively affecting the
quality of education being provided. Wile she appreciated
Legislative efforts, she avowed that further State assistance would
be required.

GARY PAXTON, InterimGty Admnistrator, Gty and Borough of Sitka,
testified via teleconference from Sitka, regarding the State's
obligation to pay 60-percent of the General bligation (GO bonds
to pay for the Sitka auditorium and school upgrades. He stressed
that the State's reneging on its commtnent would create a
credibility issue. Furthernore, he stressed that the citizens of
the State nust contribute to generating a revenue streamfor State
expenses such as educati on.

STEVE BRADSHAW Sitka School District, testified via tel econference
fromSitka to explain how "painful” it was to reduce teaching staff
in local schools during the previous budgetary process, and he
attested that were the Governor's proposed education reductions
furthered, the Cty would be required to again reduce staffing
| evel s. He stated that this would result in |larger class sizes and
limted prograns. He stated that alternate revenues sources nust be
identified, as "better" State funding nust be forthcom ng

FRED REEDER, Mayor, City and Borough of Sitka, testified via
tel econference from Sitka and voi ced agreenent with the testinony
of Gary Paxton who specified that Al askans should pay for the
services that are provided to them He urged the Legislature to
|l ook to the State's citizens for help, and he shared that Sitka
woul d be Iooking to its citizens for help. He addressed the GO Bond
issue as a covenant between the State's citizens and the State
government in that voters "overwhel m ngly" approved the issue. He
continued that, for the Legislature to alter the approved program
"is a break in faith."” In conclusion, he asked that the Legislature
provide funding to support inportant and mandated prograns, such as
educati on.

Senat or Taylor agreed with M. Reeder’s comments. He asked the

SFC- 03 (16) 04/ 16/ 03



consequences to the Cty and Borough of Sitka's FY 04 budget were
current State funding | evels nmaintained or reduced.

M . Reeder responded that were the current |evel nmaintained, an
ei ght percent budget reduction would be anticipated. Further State
funding reductions, he continued, would negatively inpact the
budget another two percent.

M. Reeder pointed out that "had the Gty not stepped up to plate,"
the school district "would be in a world of hurt" as, he noted that
approximately 50 percent of the school district's budget could be
attributed to the Gty. He noted that every community in Alaska is
facing the dilemma of adequately funding its school district within
the all owabl e funding paraneters dictated by State | aw.

Senat or Tayl or acknow edged Co-Chair Wlken's efforts in support of
i ncreased education fundi ng. Nonet hel ess, he noted that even with
t he adoption over-the-years of legislation to assist wth school
fundi ng, he asserted that the FY 04 proposed budget reductions, in
addition to reduced State base student foundation fornmula funds due
declining enrollnents, would have a "devastating inpact” on the
school districts that have testified during this neeting. He stated
that the budgetary nunbers being presented by these comunities, as
opposed to the hardships attested by other school districts,
reflects the "real"” situation being faced.

Co- Chair W/I ken acknow edged that other Al askan communities, such
as Kenai, are also experiencing foundation formula funding
reductions due to declines in student enroll nent.

Senat or Hoffrman acknowl edged the Menbers' efforts exerted in
support of education funding.

The followng testifiers testified in Juneau.

NIl CHOLAS CGROSSKRUTH, Student, University of Alaska Southeast,
shared how he has personally benefited fromthe services provided
by the Southeast Al aska |ndependent Living Program and he urged
for continued support of the programand the services it provides
to enabl e people to live independently.

JENNI FER LCESCH, Student, University of Al aska Sout heast, i nforned
the Conmttee that after graduation from high school in Petersburg,
she attended a university in Texas for one year, where she stated
she was identified by her student identification nunber rather than
by her nane. She shared that as a recipient of the Al aska Schol ars
program she decided to return to college in Al aska. Now, she
attested, she is involved in University Iife and is enjoying snall
cl asses and a "trenmendous academ c program” She shared her plans

SFC- 03 (17) 04/ 16/ 03



to remain in the State after she earns her coll ege degree, and she
urged the Committee to support the funding request of the
Uni versity.

CHRI STIN HOMRD, Transfer Student, University of Al aska Sout heast,
spoke in support of University funding. She stated that, although
the canpus is nuch smaller than the school she previously attended,
it offers nore, "educationally and socially.” She praised the
school's programthat is allowing her to earn her "Masters Degree
in Education in only one year." She attested that the small class
sizes and student activities are attributes; however, she shared
that were prograns, classes, and staff elimnated or reduced due to
budget reductions, she would be required to leave the State to
pursue her education, and, furthernore, she stated that the
school's ability to attract out-of-state students would be
curtail ed.

RYAN GREEN, Third-Year Qut-of-State Student, University of Al aska
Sout heast, testified in support of full funding for the University
as, he attested, recent years' funding support has allowed the
University to expand its facilities and its course offerings. He
stated that these "i Mmense changes” have nmade the University "ful
of life" and full of students.

ERI C MORRI SON, Student, University of Al aska Sout heast, urged that
the University be fully funded, as, he attested, it is difficult to
under st and why fundi ng opportunities are in peril, as they assist
in providing a better quality of life. He stated that "education is
the key to the country's and world' s salvation,” and serve to
def eat ignorance and ideol ogies that contribute to world problens.
He characterized the inprovenents afforded to the University by
recent years' funding as good; however, he stressed that, wth
continued adequate funding the University —could achieve
"greatness.” He encouraged the Conmttee to revisit the decision to
reduce community school, K-12, and University funding, and to "do
the right thing” for the futures of youth, Al aska, and the nation

by fully fundi ng educati on.

Senat or Bunde commented that the State is spending nore than its
budget allows; therefore, he requested that testifiers include
program fundi ng source suggestions in their testinony.

JOYCE KITKA, Representative, Alaska Association for Comunity
Education, inforned the Conmmittee that, for $500,000 a year,
Al aska's community schools' staff and volunteers provide 20,000
activities for 464,000 children and 390,000 adults. She attested
that the program "is not a luxury,"” and she exanpled parenting
prograns and after-and-before school childcare prograns as being

SFC- 03 (18) 04/ 16/ 03



representative of the types of prograns and servi ces being provided
to people. She urged the Commttee to fully fund comunity school s,
K-12 and University education. She suggested that Commttee Menbers
visit a local school programto w tness and understand why fundi ng
educational prograns is so inportant. In addition, she voiced
support for inplenmentation of a State incone tax.

MARI E DARLIN, Capital City Task Force Coordi nator, AARP Al aska,
spoke, on behal f of the organization, in opposition to the proposed
elimnation of the Longevity Bonus program She stated that the
primary purpose for establishing this programwas to keep people in
the State, and she specified that every dollar distributed to
seniors through the Bonus program "turns over at least twice" in
the State's econony. In addition to the econom c inpact of the
program seniors living in the State contribute a trenendous anount
of volunteer and caregiver hours. Furthernore, she noted that due
to recipient deaths, the cost of the programis decreasing by nore
than three mllion dollars per year and would gradually be phased
out. She urged the Conmttee to | eave the programalone, as it, in
sone cases, provides approxinmately ten percent of sone individuals'
i ncone.

Ms. Darlin, in addition, urged for funding support for comrmunity
schools, K-12 and University education, the State Miuseum State
H storical Library, State Archives, and the Shelton Jackson Miseum

RCSALEE WALKER, Representative, O der Persons Action G oup and AARP
Al aska-Juneau Chapter, spoke in opposition to the proposed
elimnation of the Al aska Longevity Bonus Program as the funding
support is inmportant to senior citizens. She stated that, in
response to Senator Bunde's request for funding suggestions, the
program al ready existed in the budget and that it should sinply be
rei nst at ed.

SFC 03 # 57, Side B 08:16 PM

Ms. Walker continued that the Admnistration's proposal to
elimnate the program was inplenmented "in haste,” and that vita
information was not provided to assist in the decision making
process. She assured the Committee that Alaska's senior citizens
are cognizant of the State's fiscal dilenma and "that AARP works
diligently with all levels of State governnent in reaching
effective solutions to budgetary problens.” She asserted that the
Adm nistration's swift action to elimnate the Longevity Bonus
program did not allow sufficient time to thoroughly investigate
"alternative strategies that could be easily inplenmented in order

SFC- 03 (19) 04/ 16/ 03



to avoid a disastrous and devastating situation for a nost
vul nerabl e portion of Al aska's population.” She stated that seniors
were not included in the discussion process, and she stated that
argunments in support of the Bonus program elimnation are
unreasonable. She asked that senior <citizens be provided an
opportunity to work with the Legislature and the Adm nistration to
determ ne a nore acceptable alternative.

SAM TRIVETTE, President, Retired Public Enployees of Al aska,
requested, on behalf of the nmenbers of the organization, that the
Longevity Bonus Program be restored in the FY 04 budget, as its
elimnation would severely inpact its recipients. He noted that the
majority of the programis recipients are wonen, 75 years of age or
ol der who have "sonme of the |owest retirenent inconmes and sone of
t he highest nedical expenses" of the State's citizens. He stated
that the loss of the Bonus program m ght result in many of these
senior citizens being required to leave the State in order to
receive care. Furthernore, he stated that |ocal businesses woul d be
harmed by the elimnation of the nonthly paynents, as this would
effectively renove approximately $94 nillion worth of econonic
benefits to the State.

M. Trivette also requested that no changes be inposed to the GO
Bond indebtedness |anguage that was recently approved by the
citizens of the State, as it would negatively affect locally
approved projects. He voiced support for the continuation of ACS as
it is only accredited correspondence program and urged for ful
funding of the University as it is a positive presence in the State
and in retaining Al askan students.

NANCY ANDI SON testified in support of the |Independent Living Gants
program through which she and nunerous others have received
assi st ance.

MARC VWHEELER, Menber, City & Borough of Juneau Assenbly, voiced
concern regarding the proposed changes to the school bond
proposition as he noted that any fundi ng changes m ght negatively
affect the community's ability to build a new high school. He noted
that 70-percent of Juneau's voters approved the Novenber 2002
St at ewi de bal | ot bond proposition, even though no Juneau projects
were identified in it. He also voiced support for a State incone
t ax.

JIM CARRCLL, 37-Year Juneau Resident, Menber, AARP Al aska, and
President, Retired Teachers Associ ation-Juneau Chapter urged the
Commttee to adequately fund education, as he pointed out that
people are the State's greatest resource and they should be
provided a quality education. In addition, he urged that the

SFC- 03 (20) 04/ 16/ 03



Longevity Bonus Program be allowed to termnate as currently
speci fi ed.

DANI EL PETERSON, Menber, City & Borough of Juneau Board of
Education, and Student, University of Al aska Sout heast, stated that
education should be a top priority in the State. He pointed out
that the proposed FY 04 budget reductions for K-12 education woul d
trigger an $800,000 budget loss to the Juneau school district,
primarily due to the proposed funding for pupil transportation

which he described as a "fixed cost.” He stated that being
obligated to provide transportation funding at the |ocal |evel

woul d renove funding fromall budget conmponents, and fromteaching
positions in particular. Therefore, he urged that full pupil

transportation funding be restored. Furthernore, he stated that the
proposed ten-percent reduction in the bond indebtedness program
woul d harm comunities, on a statew de basis, that have projects in
progress. He stated that the proposed education reductions are
contrary to the education mandates being inplenented such as the
federal No Child Left Behind Act.

Senator Tayl or asked the total Cty and Borough O Juneau school
di strict budget.

M. Peterson responded that the budget is approximtely $35
mllion.

PAUL DOUGLAS stated that, as a parent of an adult son with multiple
disabilities, he is urging that the proposed 42.7 percent funding
reduction to Centers for Independent Living be restored, as were it
not, services to individuals would be prohibited. He stated that
the Adm nistration's position that the program be sel f-sufficient
is unrealistic, as the federally funded State |ndependent Living
Council Executive Director position, through which key grant
witing is done, has been elimnated by State Adm nistrators. He
wondered why this decision was nade, as he attested, the
elimnation of the position would not benefit the State.
Conti nuing, he stated that the House of Representatives Finance
Comm ttee has recognized the inportance of the program and has
restored the mpjority of the programis FY 04 funding. He
"respectfully requested” that the Senate Finance Conmttee do
li kew se. In summary, he provided information attesting to the
personal and financial benefits derived from allow ng disabled
i ndi viduals to independently live in their own hone as opposed to
receiving institutional care. He stated that the "math is
conpelling," and, he attested, that elimnating these funds would
serve to increase costs to the State el sewhere.

Senat or Bunde, Chair of the Senate Labor & Workforce Devel opnent

SFC- 03 (21) 04/ 16/ 03



subcommttee, noted that, while the Senate Labor and Commerce
Conmittee restored $300,000 to the budget, a $318,000 shortfal
remai ns.

Senat or Hof f man asked for further information regarding the intent
of the Senate Labor and Comrerce funding.

[ Note: Senator Bunde's response was indiscernible.]

M. Douglas noted that sone of the programis federal funding is
earmarked for specific prograns.

Co-Chair WI ken assured the testifier and the Commttee that Co-
Chair Green is working on this issue.

EARL CLARKE, Enployee, |Independent Living Center, inforned the
Comm ttee that continuous efforts are being made by the Center to
identify people who could be transitioned fromliving in a nursing
home to living independently in their community. He stated that
assisting people in this manner has saved, and would continue to
save, the State a trenendous anount of noney. Therefore, he urged
the Conmttee to support I|ndependent Living Centers as he decl ared
that, "nmoney put into this programis generating a | ot nore savings
than one would think."” He stated that "the sinple answer” to the
State's budgetary problem is to allow Al askans "to pay sone
addi ti onal taxes because we do not want our care system or our
peopl e deci mated by a budgetary tool."

Co-Chair Wl ken stated that Commttee Menbers have been provided a
packet [copy on file] from the Al aska Muinicipal League that the
follow ng testifier mght reference.

KEVIN RI TCH E, Executive Director, Al aska Minicipal League, voiced
appreciation for the Menber's efforts to address the State's fisca
crisis, and he acknow edged Senator Taylor's remarks regardi ng the
efforts exerted by communities to contain expenses and address
| ocal funding issues. He stated that the aforenentioned packet
contains information regarding how 60 conmunities are addressing
the State's "spiraling economc decline.”" He noted that issues
bei ng addressed i nclude how to maintain and provide for such things
as utilities and education infrastructure in light of declining
popul ati on and student enrollnent. He stated that the good news is
that the comunities are working with the Adm nistration to address
revenue and spending issues in an efficient and creative nmanner.

Co-Chair WIken agreed that the willingness of the Adm nistration
to work with nmunicipalities would be beneficial.

SFC- 03 (22) 04/ 16/ 03



Senat or Bunde asked whet her the Al aska Minici pal League has taken a
position regarding HB 11 which wuld reduce the State's
contribution to the Permanent Fund fromthe current 50 percent of
such things as mneral |ease rentals, royalties, royalty sale
proceeds, and net profit share revenues to the constitutionally
mandat ed 25 percent.

M. Ritchie infornmed that the League has not, of yet, taken a
position on this |egislation; however, he noted that the League
woul d be neeting with Governor Frank Miurkowski to discuss this and
ot her issues.

Senator Taylor recalled that several comunities testified that
their insurance expenses have risen dramatically, and therefore, he
inquired as to whether the Al aska Minicipal League (AM.) joint
i nsurance arrangenent (JIA) "significantly increased its prem uns”
to cities. In addition, he asked whether the joint insurance
arrangenent for schools' prem uns have increased.

M. Ritchie responded yes, that both joint insurance arrangenents
have experienced "nassive increases in the cost of re-insurance and
were forced to pass” that increase on to nunicipalities and
schools. He noted that both of these Al aska-based organizations
wi th Al aska-based assets were able "to blunt sonme of the inpact.”

Senat or Tayl or asked regardi ng the percentage of the increase.
M. Ritchie responded that he did not have that infornation.

Senator Taylor clarified that the increase could be attributed to
the cost of re-insurance as opposed to the cost of clains.

M. R tchie concurred.

Senat or Tayl or asked whether the AML is advocating, |ike numerous
others, that such things as the Permanent Fund's earnings or
instituting taxes be used to address the State's budgetary
shortfalls. Continuing, he asked whet her anyone is furthering the
idea of resource developnent as a funding nechanism as he
decl ared, that he would cut and sell every tree in the State before
he would opt to reduce funding to such things as the |ndependent
Li ving program or to education.

M. Ritchie voiced support for furthering resource devel opnent.
KACI HAM LTON, President Elect, University of Al aska Southeast,

stated that he had recently noved to Al aska from Janai ca, and he
appl auded the quality education and the wllingness to assist

SFC- 03 (23) 04/ 16/ 03



students that the University's teaching faculty denonstrates. He
stated that funding is inportant to the continuance of the
University's attributes.

NELI NELSQN, Environnental Science Mjor, University of Al aska
Sout heast, urged the Conmittee to fund the University. He showed
the Conmttee sone of the water sanpling experinents that are being
conducted, and he voiced that adequate funding is required in order
for the University to continue to offer and expand the
envi ronnment al science program He voiced that "he was bl owmn away"”
by Senator Taylor's declaration that he woul d cut down every tree,
as he attested, that "is not the answer."

Senator Taylor stated that he "firmy believes that these resources
are here" in order to provide sone funding to neet the needs of the
citizens of the State. He stated that were access to these
resources denied, then all that would remain would be "the back
pocket of every working man in this State,” and he continued that
w t hout a resource base, jobs would not be available for |ong. He
stressed that people need jobs to survive, and that he would
utilize every resource in the State before he would deny people
access to assisted living prograns or to an education. He attested
that Juneau was created because of mneral resources, and that
ot her communities in Southeast al so depend on resources.

JONATHAN SM TH, High School Biology Teacher, Juneau Schoo

District, stated that rather than the two previous individual's
"extreme" positions regarding resource devel opnent, he described
hi nsel f as a noderate who realizes that the State nust develop its
resources, especially mning and tinbering in Southeast Al aska;
however, he noted that "controll ed devel opnent” nust be inplenented
in order to avoid "polarization" of people. He suggested that "the
right thinking and the right heart" should be present when making
deci sions, and he attested that not every tree nmust be cut down to
provide for jobs and that such things as buffer zones should be
designated to protect streanms. He noted that in addition to
resource devel opnent, sales taxation is also an option; however, he
stated that consideration nust be given to not taxing to an extrene
| evel and that, again, "noderation is the key."

M. Smth continued that, as chair of the Southeast Al aska State
Science Fair, which is one of only two science fairs conducted in
the State, he spoke in support of retaining rather than elimnating
t he Departnent of Environmental Conservation |aboratory in Juneau
as it provides equi pnment support annually to the student science
fair projects. He stated that contrary to Governor Mirkowski's
expl anation that the | aboratory provides "redundant” equi pnent; the
equi pnent is not redundant to students in Southeast Al aska. He

SFC- 03 (24) 04/ 16/ 03



noted that w thout the support of this facility, the Juneau science
fair winners would not be able to conpete and win at the national
science fair as they have done in the past.

ANDREA DOLL, Teacher, stated that she is testifying out of concern
for the State's youth, its values, and its expenditures. She urged
the Commttee to not "take services fromthose who al ready have so
little and who need themthe nost," particularly the State's youth.
She shared that, in her teaching experience, she has worked with
yout h who have grown up without a parent to pick their pre-schoo
or to help themw th their honmework or to read to them and provide
ot her gui dance. She stated that, while the State, |ike individuals,
nmust nake deci sions regarding where to spend its noney, she voiced
that the State should spend its noney to save the youth of the
State rather than to put themin places such as "detention centers
to contain them™ She voi ced confidence that the Legislature would
provi de support to youth that would assist themin finding "their
rightful future.” She voiced strong support for a State incone tax.

BOB BRI GGS, Staff Attorney, Disability Law Center, acconpani ed by
his stepdaughter, ALANA DULUSKI, distributed a copy of the
testinmony [copy on file] that he had presented on behalf of the
Disability Law Center before the House of Representative in support
of funding for Independent Living Centers (ILC). He urged the
Committee to increase the proposed funding levels for the ILC and,
in addition, he requested that the program be transferred to the
Departnent of Health and Social Services and that the ILC
coordi nator position be funded.

M. Briggs urged the Commttee, on behalf of hinmself and his
famly, to fund the Al yeska Central School and "to consider the
human inpact of its closure.” He stated that Al aska has severa
very small schools with limted teaching staff, and he questioned
the desire to elimnate ACS's "very qualified teaching staff,”
particularly in light of recently enacted federal No Child Left
Behi nd Act. He declared that the Legislators are "the chanpi ons of
education,” and as the policy makers of the State, he urged themto
persuade the Governor to not follow through on his proposal to
el i m nate ACS.

M. Briggs suggested the follow ng program fundi ng nechani sns: that
the ILC be awarded half of a percent of the savings generated from
all owi ng people to live independently rather than in nursing hones;
that a percentage of the funding allocated to a school district be
awarded to ACS for each child enrolled in ACS fromthat district;
and that an incone tax and the Permanent Fund be used to fund State
government rather than inposing higher gasoline taxes or other user
taxes that mght disproportionately affect [ow and fixed incone

SFC- 03 (25) 04/ 16/ 03



i ndi vi dual s.

LI SA HOFERKAMP, Chem stry Professor, University of Al aska
Sout heast, urged for continued funding of the State Laboratory in
Juneau as the facility and staff provide "critical" and "integral”
support to the environnental science prograns offered by the
University. She stated that the l|laboratory and its professiona
staff are an asset to the University, and its cl osure woul d hinder
State and University efforts. She noted that the environnental
science programis very popul ar and attracts numerous out-of-state
students.

PEGGY COMN, Superintendent, Juneau School District, supported M.
Peterson's and M. Weeler's coments in support of education. She
declared that teachers and support staff work hard to provide
students with a quality education, and that reduced fundi ng woul d
negatively affect these efforts. In addition, she characterized
flat funding as a decrease in funding due to the district's fixed
expenses such as the recent 300 percent increase in insurance
prem uns. She stated that the Governor's proposed budget "would
cripple"” the district's ability to do its job and provide a quality
education system as nandated in the State's Constitution. She
stated that the Juneau Board of Education is wurging for: an
increase in the base student foundation funding formula in order to
protect the purchasing power of the educational dollar; to restore
pupi |l transportation funding as reductions in this funding would
result in fewer teachers rather than in savings in transportation
expenses; and for the restoration of the |earning opportunity
grants which are used to assist students who are not neeting the
State's mandated standards. She also voiced support for the
restoration of the full level of bond debt reinbursenent, and
voi ced support for the continuation of the Departnent of
Envi ronnmental Conservation |aboratory, as it is part of the
district's student support system

Senat or Hof fman asked the testifier for funding option suggestions.

Ms. Cowan voiced that a bal anced approach should be inplenented,
and in support of such, a State inconme tax should be consi dered,
"as it is the nost fair." She also noted that other revenue sources
shoul d be identified.

Senat or Bunde comented that there are those who believe that
parents' Permanent Fund Dividend (PFD) checks could be retained to
support the high cost of education.

Senator Taylor inquired as to whether the 300-percent insurance
increase is the anount charged through the Joint [Insurance

SFC- 03 (26) 04/ 16/ 03



Agreenment pool or through a private insurance carrier.

SFC 03 # 58, Side A 09:05 PM

Ms. Cowan responded that she is unsure.

Senat or Tayl or asked the Superintendent to provide himwth further
i nformation regardi ng school insurance fees.

CATHY CONNOR, GCeol ogy Professor, University of Al aska Sout heast,
informed the Commttee that the University "already" generates
noney from logging that is conducted on University |ands. She
stated that these funds once supported program research, but now
support the Al aska Scholars program which hel ps keep Al askan
students in the State. In addition, she noted that the tuition
generated by attracting nore in-state and out-of-state students
provi des funds to the University. She voiced support for a State
income tax, and she also suggested that communities such as
Anchorage incorporate | ocal sales taxes. She stated that currently,
the University is playing "a shell game" with its financing. She
al so urged for the continued funding of the State Laboratory in
Juneau as the science prograns at the University depend on the
facility to support a variety of prograns.

TOBI N COATE, Student, University of Al aska Sout heast, voiced that
he supports resource devel opnent and, he stressed that Al askans
shoul d manage those resources. He shared his famly's educati on and
work history, and he urged the Committee to fully fund the
University in order to retain and attract students to the State.

JEANNE FOY, Teacher, Alyeska Central School, stated that closing
this correspondence program would not save the State noney. She
noted that while eleven school districts offer Statew de education
prograns, they differ from ACS in that they provide honme-schoo
support progranms. She stated that elimnation of ACS would deny
Al askan fam lies a choice of educational prograns.

Co-Chair Wl ken asked Ms. Foy to provide his office with a short
expl anation regardi ng the neaning of accreditation as it applies to
ACS, as he noted that Legislators mght benefit from this
i nformation.

Senat or Hof f man asked for suggestions regarding howto fund the ACS
program

Ms. Foy reiterated that the State woul d not be saving any noney as

SFC- 03 (27) 04/ 16/ 03



the State's student foundation fornmula funding "follows the
student,” and therefore, were ACS elimnated, the funding would
shift to whatever district the student enrolled in. She attested
t hat correspondence and hone school prograns cost the State |ess
noney per student as these prograns are allocated a | esser anpunt
than that allotted to brick and nortar schools. She furthered that
were the Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnment to fund the
st at ewi de hone school support programs in the manner that they fund
the ACS program nine mllion dollars would be saved on an annual
basi s.

JIM DOUG.AS, Professor, University of Alaska Fairbanks and
Sout heast Al aska and Kodiak 4-H Agent, and the Cooperative
Ext ensi on Service Program Agent, informed the Committee that
because of reduced funding over the years, nunerous Cooperative
Ext ensi on Service instructors have been laid off, and he stated
that the State cannot afford this "brain drain" to continue. He
stated that inadequate funding is harnful in that these prograns
|l ose a vast anmount of pertinent information when staffing is
reduced.

CECI LEA M LLER, Teacher, Al yeska Central School, affirmed that the
base student foundation fornmula funding travels with the student to
what ever State education program a student enrolls in. She urged
the Commttee to adequately fund K-12 education, including pupi
transportation and the school bond debt reinbursenment program In
addi ti on, she gquestioned Legislative action regarding the increase
in University tuition fees, as she understood that an agreenent was
in place whereby the State "would split the cost that the
University needed for funding," whereby half would be raised by
tuition and the other half would be provided through the
Legi slature. In conclusion, she stated that the foll ow ng week, she
woul d be attending a sem nar regarding school accreditation and
that upon her return, she would be happy to share updated
information with the Commttee.

Senator Taylor voiced that, no matter what type of State
correspondence program a student enrolled in, the base student
foundation formula funding would equal 80-percent of traditional
school fundi ng. However, he continued, that the costs to the State
woul d be five-fold were those sane students to enroll in a school,
for exanple, in Bethel

Ms. Mller voiced that this was also her understanding.
Furthernore, she stated that correspondence prograns, such as ACS,
provi de | earning opportunities to students with health issues or
who are traveling, in addition to allowng other students an
opportunity to transition back to a brick and nortar school. She

SFC- 03 (28) 04/ 16/ 03



concurred that elimnation of the ACS sunmer program woul d provi de
savings to the State.

Senat or Hof f man asked for suggestions as to how the State could
address its fiscal gap.

Ms. MIler responded that her sister, who is a teacher in Kansas,
has no synpathy for the State's financial crisis as the sister
contends that the State has noney as attested by its annual
Per manent Fund Di vi dend di sbursenments and the fact that the State,
unli ke the State of Kansas, has no incone tax, property tax or
sales tax legislation. Ms. MIller stated that perhaps it is tine
for the citizens of the State to pay for what they need.

Co-Chair WIken asked the testifier to work wwth Ms. Foy to provide
an explanation, in layman's terns, as to what accreditation is and
what graduating from an accredited program neans to a graduating
student. He stated that this information would assist in
determ ning whether elimnation of the sunmer program mght, in
effect, mght allow for the continuance of the regular school year
correspondence program and provide the Legislature with sufficient
information as to whether the ACS program be allowed to operate one
nore year to provide a transitional period of tine.

Ms. MIler informed the Conmttee that she woul d soon be attending
a distance accreditation semnar and would be able to supply
appropriate information upon her return.

M CHELLE AKERS, Student and Enployee, University of Al aska
Sout heast, Enpl oyee, National Cceanic and At nosphere Adm nistration
(NOAA), and Enpl oyee, Departnent of Environnmental Conservation
Laboratory, urged the Commttee to adequately fund the University.
She al so besieged that the Conmttee continue operating the State
| aboratory in Juneau, as the facility is crucial to NOAA and the
Departnent of Environmental Conservation research as well as to the
envi ronnental science and other prograns offered at the University.

CHARLES LI NDLEY, Student, University of Al aska Sout heast, stated
that he is an out-of-state, full-tuition student from Georgia who
is studying environnental science. He stated that he has "found a
honme up here,"” and he thanked the Legislature for the opportunity
to live and receive a quality education in Al aska.

JEREM AH CRAI G, Student, University of Al aska Sout heast urged for
full funding for the University system He stressed that it is
i nperative that this support continue as he opined that being able
to provide an education to |ocal people, who want to live in the
State, is the key to growing a strong State.

SFC- 03 (29) 04/ 16/ 03



The bills were HELD in Committee.
#

ADJ QURNIVENT

Co-Chair Gary WI ken adjourned the neeting at 09: 30 PM

SFC- 03 (30) 04/ 16/ 03



